UNITED
NATIONS C R C

Di str.

Convention on the GENERAL
Rights of the Child CRC/ O/ SR. 345

30 January 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Fourteent h session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 345t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 8 January 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: Ms. BELEMBAOCGO

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES

Initial report of Bulgaria

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 97- 15014 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4)

Initial report of Bulgaria (CRC/C/8/ Add.29 (English only); CRC/C/ QBUL.1 (Ilist
of issues); witten replies by the CGovernnent of Bulgaria with no docunent
synmbol, in English)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, Ms. Bojkova, M. Andreev,
M. Kolarov, M. Stefanov and Ms. Todorova (Bulgaria) took places at the
Committee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON wel conmed the del egation of Bulgaria and invited it to
introduce the initial report of the Bul garian Government (CRC/ C/ 8/ Add. 29).

3. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bul garia), having paid tribute to the Committee for its
work in pronoting children's rights, said that Bulgaria had ratified the
Convention on the Rights of the Child in 1991 wi thout any reservations and
that its initial report had been drafted in accordance with the genera
gui del i nes adopted by the Conmttee and with the wi dest possible participation
of representatives of conpetent institutions and non-governnent al

organi zations (NGOs). Neither inits initial report nor inits witten
replies had her Governnent sought to hide the problens and obstacl es

preventing the full inplenentation of the Convention in Bulgaria.

4, Wth regard to the place of the Convention in Bulgaria' s domestic |ega
system she said that the Constitution gave ratified international instruments
precedence over donestic legislation. In its concern to bring its legislation

fully into line with the Convention, the Governnent envi saged the preparation
of a draft law on the protection of the child. Furthernore, the Council of

M ni sters had recently adopted two decrees ainmed at inproving the situation of
children: Decree No. 88 of 18 April 1995 established the Commttee for Young
Peopl e and Children, which was enpowered to el aborate and coordi nate State
policy on children and youth; and Decree No. 252 of 22 Decenber 1995,

regul ating the establishnment of care centres for honel ess children

5. In 1995, Parlianent had amended the Penal Code with a view to protecting
chil dren agai nst ki dnappi ng and sexual abuse and, in Decenber 1996, it had
adopted an act to amend the Conbating Antisocial Behaviour by Mnors and

Adol escents Act, which enphasi zed prevention and educati on and gave juvenile
del i nquents the right to counsel and, in the event that a | ocal Comr ssion for
Combat i ng Anti soci al Behaviour by M nors and Adol escents should decide to
place themin an institution, the right to have that decision reviewed by the
courts.

6. Still at the stage of consideration were a bill on assistance to
famlies in child upbringing, and a draft ordi nance providing for the
establishnent of a special Youth and Children Devel opnent Activities Fund, to
finance projects such as the production of children's food and clothing and to
promote children's tourismand | eisure.



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 3

7. Wth regard to children deprived of liberty, she wi shed to point out
that 12 per cent of crimnal offences in 1995 had been conmitted by juveniles.
Her Government was fully aware that deprivation of liberty should be used only
as a last resort, and that young offenders nmust be treated humanely and with
due regard to their age.

8. Conpl ai nts of violations of human rights by | aw enforcenent officials,
and especially by police officers, were investigated, and the findings of such
i nvestigations were made public. Follow ng such conplaints, 75 disciplinary
proceedi ngs had been conducted in the period 1994-1996. Courses, semnars and
conferences on human rights were organi zed for teachers, prosecutors, judges
and police and prison officials.

9. On the question of Roma children, she said that, according to a recent
report by Human Ri ghts Watch, 85 per cent of street children belonged to the
Roma mi nority. Because of the serious crisis through which the country was
passing, that mnority was severely affected by poverty and unenpl oynment, and
a grow ng nunber of Roma children were involved in prostitution. According to
the Mnistry of the Interior, 37 per cent of all crinmes recorded were
commtted by Roma, a fact that accounted in part for the negative public
attitude towards that mnority. Against that background, the Governnment was
currently drafting a programme ai nmed at solving the social, economc, health
and nutritional problens encountered by Roma. In that context, activities
were scheduled to be carried out in close cooperation with the Bulgarian Red
Cross and several NGOs. Municipalities were also being asked to set up
children's canteens in regions with a predom nantly Roma popul ation

10. In conclusion, she said that, despite the extrene gravity of the
economi c crisis, which had obliged the State to cut public spending on socia
wel fare programmes and the protection of vul nerable groups, and which had | ed
to the resignation of the Government on 28 Decenber 1996, Bul garia woul d make
every effort to ensure strict inplenentation of the Convention and woul d
continue to cooperate fully with the Commttee.

11. The CHAI RPERSON invited the members of the Conmittee to ask questions
concerning “Ceneral neasures of inplenentation” (arts. 4, 42 and 44, para. 6,
of the Convention, issues Nos. 1 to 11 in the list of issues (CRC/C/ QBUL.1)).

12. M. KOLOSOV, recalling the requirenent for States to undertake neasures
for the inplenmentation of the rights recognized in the Convention “to the
maxi mum extent of their avail abl e resources”, asked what was the exact anount
of the social allowances paid to famlies without incomes, referred to in
paragraph 22 of the witten replies; whether the international financial aid
recei ved by Bulgaria was equitably distributed; and whether children
especially the nost di sadvantaged anong them were beneficiaries.

13. It would also be interesting to know into what minority | anguages the
Convention had been translated, and how many individuals, NGO and school s had
requested copies of the initial report. The witten replies stated that the
report was available to persons requesting it. Wuld it not be desirable to
di ssenminate the report widely, rather than waiting for people to request

copi es?



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 345
page 4

14. Ms. SANTOS PAI S wel conmed the detailed oral introduction by the

del egation of Bulgaria, and the fact that the initial report had been prepared
in accordance with the guidelines. Lacunae and shortcom ngs regarding the

i mpl enmentati on of the Convention had been described w thout conplacency and
that, too, was to be commended. There were five areas that called for
particul ar attention in that regard.

15. First, she regretted the lack of statistics concerning the scope of
application of the Convention by the courts, often a very revealing indicator
of the wel conme accorded to the Convention by public opinion. The fact that
the Bul garian courts were able to decide that a piece of |egislation was
obsol ete gave them an inmportant power. Did that nean, however, that an
institution must first decide that a piece of |egislation was inconpatible
with the Convention, for it to |l apse officially? In other words, could
domestic | egislation be applied even when it was not in accordance with the
provi si ons of the Convention?

16. Secondly, it was regrettable that there was no national machinery to
draft laws for the protection of children's rights. There too, in the absence
of statistics, it was difficult to determ ne what priority the Government gave
to respect for children's rights and to what extent the policies el aborated
led to results. It seened, for exanple, that nuch remained to be done in the
areas of administration of justice for minors, child beggars and child
prostitution. What programes and services existed to alleviate the inmpact on
children of the econom c problens inherent in the country's politica
transition? A survey on the situation of children in the country had been
submtted to the National Assenbly, and she would like to know the concl usions
that survey had reached and how the National Assenbly proposed to follow it

up.

17. Thirdly, she asked whether there was a body to provide effective

coordi nation of the various institutions working to pronote children's
interests, and, if so, whether that body had the mandate and powers necessary
to ensure coordination of activities at all levels of public life. Ws there
a conprehensive plan of action for children? How was nonitoring of

i mpl enmentati on of the Convention ensured? She also w shed to know whet her the
Gover nment envi saged establishing an i ndependent national institution to

nmedi ate on children's behal f.

18. The fourth point she wished to raise concerned the resources allocated
by the Governnent for the inplenentation of the rights set forth in the
Convention, article 4 of which required States to undertake measures with
regard to econonic, social and cultural rights “to the maxi mum extent of their
avai |l abl e resources”. She w shed to know whether the Governnent nade
programes for children a budgetary priority and whet her steps had been taken
to elimnate regional disparities with regard to social services and to

i mprove treatnent of the nost disadvantaged children, particularly Roma
chi | dren.

19. Lastly, the del egation should provide additional information on the
steps taken to faniliarize professionals such as judges with the principles
and provisions of the Convention.



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 5

20. Ms. KARP said she shared the concerns expressed by Ms. Santos Pais,
particularly with regard to the absence of a conprehensive policy for children
and of nechanisnms to ensure coordination and cooperati on between the various
bodi es responsible for inplenentation of the Convention. 1In addition to
avoi di ng duplication of activities, a coordination nechani smwoul d enabl e

Bul garia to focus its efforts on areas of high priority, having regard to its
budgetary problens. Thus, contributions received from abroad coul d be
directly allocated to specific essential programres.

21. She woul d li ke to know what obstacles had hindered the establishment of
an i ndependent national institution to nediate on children's behalf. She also
asked what proportions of the activities of the Commttee for Young Peopl e and
Children related to persons bel ow and above 18 years of age respectively.

22. Wth regard to raising awareness of the Convention's provisions, she
stressed the resolutely innovative approach adopted therein, which conferred
on the child all the dignity and rights to which human beings could lay claim
Each individual or body working for the benefit of children should be fully
aware of that new perspective. Gven that the Convention dealt not only with
children's civil rights, but also with their econom c, social and cultura
rights, various categories of professionals, such as social workers and child
psychol ogi sts, would have to be trained. Wre steps being taken for that
purpose, and what resources were allocated to any such training programes?

23. She woul d I'ike to know whether all NGOs which so desired were able to
participate in the activities of the Conmttee for Young People and Children
Lastly, she asked what had been the outconme of the survey conducted on
children in Bulgaria and whet her that survey had nade it possible to identify
the problens that arose in connection with the drafting of laws to protect the
rights of the child.

24. Ms. EUFEM O havi ng associ ated herself with the questions put by other
Committee nenbers, asked what working relationship existed between the

M nistry of Foreign Affairs, in particular its Department of Human Rights and
Social and Humanitarian Affairs, and the other mnistries; she also asked what
was the precise function of the Commttee for Young People and Children

Wt hout questioning in any way the conpetence of the Bul garian del egation, she
depl ored the absence of representatives fromthe various mnistries to which a
good nunber of the recommendations fornulated by the Conmttee woul d be

addr essed.

25. She enphasi zed the need to update the plan of action to inprove the
situation of children in Bulgaria, which should specify, in connection with
each of its recomrendati ons, the target group in the population and the
resources allocated for that purpose, with a viewto the inplementation of al
the provisions of the Convention. Lastly, she welconmed the fact that, in

Bul gari a, social workers had henceforth to be university graduates - an

i ndi cati on of the high-level of conpetence expected of them In that
connection, she asked what was the ratio of social workers to children in the
Bul gari an popul ati on and whet her they adopted a nore gl obal approach to the
famly, where necessary.



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 6

26. M ss MASON said she would |ike sonme clarification of the precise nandate
and conposition of the Conmmttee for Young People and Children, given the

i nportant powers that were vested in it. Wth regard to the socia

di st urbances caused by the Roma people in Bulgaria, she asked whether there
had been any attenpt to identify the deep-rooted causes of their behavi our and
unrest. She would also like to know whet her the national or |ocal authorities
were responsible for conpiling data on the inplenentation of the Convention in
the country, on the one hand, and on the inpact of the transition towards
denocracy on children, on the other. Lastly, she asked what percentage of

Bul garian famlies had a television set, since television programmes were an
easy and efficient nmeans of broadcasting information relating to the
Conventi on.

The neeting was suspended at 11.30 a.m and resuned at 11.50 a. m

27. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bulgaria), replying to M. Kol osov's questions, said she
recogni zed that the suns allocated for children's welfare were quite

i nadequat e, but pointed out that the inconme of the Bulgarian population as a
whol e was very low. The fact that such allowances existed at all represented

maj or progress. It was only to be hoped that the next Government woul d
approve the recomrendati on adopted by the former Council of Mnisters that
those all owances be increased. It was difficult, however, to consider the

matter in isolation fromdevelopnments in the country's overall socio-econonic
situation and it was necessary to be realistic.

28. In the case of issue No. 8 concerning international cooperation, she had
the inpression that there was sone confusion between the words “cooperation”
and “assistance”. Her Government received international assistance only for

speci fic programes.

29. On the subject of the translation of the Convention into the mnority
| anguages, she said that, in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution, Bulgarian was the official |anguage in the country; the
Governnment had therefore had the Convention translated into Bulgarian. It had
al so been translated into Turkish, thanks to the Bul garian National UN CEF
Conmittee. The Governnment endeavoured to collect funds for the various NGOs
dealing with children's rights so as to enable themto devise and carry out
children's programmes as well as to translate the Convention into mnority

| anguages. The text of the Convention in Bulgarian had been distributed to
t he schools and universities and would be included in their curricula

from 1997 onwards.

30. Bul garia's initial report had been distributed to all the ministries,
institutions and NGOs that dealt with children's rights. Owing to | ack of
resources, it had unfortunately not been possible to circulate it on a w der
scal e.

31. In reply to questions by Ms. Santos Pais and Ms. Karp, she said that,
in the event of an inconpatibility between domestic |egislation and the
Convention, the former would not automatically becone null and void: the
Constitutional Court could annul such a donestic law only at the request of
Parliament or the Suprene Court.



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 7

32. Wth regard to respect for the Convention and creati ng awareness anong
the professionals responsible for its inplenentation, she said that every
effort was being nmade to provide appropriate training for the staff concerned;
it would take sonme tine, however, to produce results and there were different
views on the subject. It was thus very difficult to give a clear and accurate
answer on that point.

33. Concerning the steps taken to ensure that children were accorded
priority by her Government, she said that children's rights were guaranteed
both by the Constitution and in various pieces of legislation, but it

was difficult to apply themin practice owing to the country's |ack of
resources, even though the share of the national budget allocated to children
was 10 per cent of the total

34. The Governnent was doing its utnmost to protect children fromthe adverse
effects of the market economy, through its social policies, |laws and decrees.
A new radio and tel evision act that had been adopted in 1996 contai ned
specific provisions to protect children fromthe potentially harnful effects
of information or violent or pornographic programmes. The draft child
protection | egislation also took account of the strategy of the Council of
Europe's Parlianentary Assenbly. It was in that context that an institutiona
mechani sm had been established in 1995, nanely, the Conmittee for Young People
and Children. It was made up of 34 people with various specialities (lawers,
soci al workers, etc.) who had dealings with young people both under and over
the age of 18, but it was still too early to assess the results of its work

35. On the subject of the establishnment of an i ndependent national nediation
institution for children, she said that there were two schools of thought in
Bul garia on the question of the onmbudsman in general. Those who opposed the
creation of such a post maintained that, unlike the Scandi navian countri es,
Bul gari a already had a well-established adm nistrative procedure and that the
O fice of the Prosecutor provided the necessary follow up. However, others
were in favour of the creation of such a post, as borne out by the sem nar
hel d at Sofia in m d-Decenber 1996 under the auspices of the Council of
Europe. It was inportant, neverthel ess, that the general public should have
the opportunity to express its views on the subject at greater length and the
di scussi on woul d conti nue.

36. Wth regard to the situation of the Roma people, she said that an

i nt ergovernnental group had been entrusted with the task of el aborating
programmes for that mnority and specific steps had already been taken in the
areas of education and housing. Proposals had al so been nade for the funding
of those progranmes. Mbdreover, the Centre on Inter-Ethnic Relations carried
out studies on the situation of Ronma children, with particular reference to

t he causes of delinquency anong them

37. Regar di ng the hei ghtening of public awareness about the innovatory
principles underlying the Convention, she said that conservative views on the
subject still prevailed in Bulgaria, which explained inter alia the

difficulties encountered in adopting the draft child protection |egislation
In certain circles it was thought that granting children full rights too early
woul d not necessarily guarantee their best interests.



CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 8

38. The training of social workers in the pronotion of children's rights was
difficult inasnmuch as the rights enshrined in the Convention were very
diverse. Despite their limted resources, the Bulgarian authorities were
doing their best. For instance, to increase the standing of such professions,
the training of social workers had recently been raised to degree |evel.

39. As for cooperation between the Conmittee for Young People and Children
and the NGOs, it was true that the Cormittee worked with regi stered NGOs, but
other NGOs could al so request to take part in its activities. Mreover, in
its last report, which had been widely circulated in Bulgaria, the Conmttee
for Young People and Children had highlighted the inpact of econom c problens
and of the adoption of new values on the situation of children, with
particular reference to the fall in the birth rate. The conclusions of the
report, in which the Conmttee identified problens, formulated reconmendati ons
and proposed specific strategies, were to be exam ned by Parlianent.

40. Replying to Ms. Eufenmi o's questions, she pointed out that her country's
initial report had been prepared in cooperation with all the mnistries
concerned with children's rights and that the explanation for the apparently
limted composition of the Bulgarian del egation was sinply a |ack of financia
resources. Her Governnment was very much in favour of the plan of action for
children nentioned by Ms. Eufem o, but had preferred first of all to pronote
the adoption of the draft child protection |egislation and then nove on to
consi deration of the report by the Committee for Young People and Children
which laid out strategies that represented a real plan of action

41. M ss Mason had asked sone questions about the Conmittee for Young
Peopl e and Children. That Conmittee, which was not strictly speaking

new but had been revitalized, coordinated the action of the mnistries and

ot her bodies that dealt with children's issues. The Conmittee' s budget was
very limted: in 1995 the nunber of projects it had financed barely
represented 20 million | eva. However that mght be, it was rather early to
judge the Cormittee's effectiveness. As for the problem of the Roma people, a
nunber of studies on the subject had highlighted the fact that it was
basically due to the economic situation. Wiile it was true that the
authorities had linmted scope for action in the area, it was unfair to speak
of discrimnation. Wth regard to the collection of statistics, the Nationa
Statistics Institute was responsible for collecting data in general, but other
institutions might ask it for nore specific information. The nunicipalities
that required statistics could do |ikew se, or else apply to the sociol ogica
research organi zations. As for access to the nedia, the statistics showed
that every Bulgarian famly had a television set. There was also a |arge
nunber of public libraries and alnost all schools had libraries.

42. The CHAI RPERSON observed that a priori the nenbers of the Committee had
three kinds of concern. First, the actual status of the Convention vis-a-vis
donestic legislation still needed clarification. Secondly, the mechanisns for
foll owi ng up, evaluating and coordinating the inplenentation of the Convention
were inadequate. Thirdly, the Conmittee recognized the efforts made by

Bul garia for the effective inplenentation of the Convention, but considered
that it would be in the interests of the authorities to take advantage of the
possibilities offered by article 45 of the instrunment, with a viewto
receiving greater international cooperation




CRC/ C/ SR. 345
page 9

43. Ms. SANTOS PAIS said that the draft child protection |egislation should
be adopted wi thout delay, so that the Bul garian Governnent could conply with
article 4 of the Convention. The obligations incurred by States parties under
that article with respect to economic, social and cultural rights were
perfectly clear, even though it was understandable that the transition towards
a mar ket econony was a difficult one. Consequently, although children did not
vote and were politically “invisible”, there was no question of them being
forgotten by the authorities. The Committee on Young People and Chil dren nust
have all the necessary resources to be able to ensure the requisite
coordination and interaction at all levels. As for the statistical data, it
shoul d not be forgotten that, when exam ning Bulgaria' s report in 1993, the
Human Ri ghts Conmittee had stressed the need for an independent mechanismto
collect data. |In Scandinavia, for instance, the ombudsnman nechani sm had
proved very useful in that regard.

44, Wth respect to the situation of the Roma people, the Governnent had
referred to certain difficulties which were quite understandabl e.
Nevert hel ess, agai nst the background of the economic crisis, the fact that
certain offences were associated with a mnority such as the Rona peopl e was
still a matter of concern. Action nust thus be taken to include the study of
the Convention in the school curricula, to ensure that Roma children were
taught in their own | anguage and to meke the nenbers of all rel evant

prof essi ons (judges, teachers, etc.) better acquainted with the rights
enshrined in the Convention

45. M. KOOSOV said that well-devel oped administrative structures were not
in themsel ves sufficient to ensure respect for human rights. For exanple, in
Bul garia, there had been 75 cases of violations of those rights by

| aw- enf orcement officers. Since, on the one hand, the judicial system in the
countries with economes in transition did not provide such effective renedies
as in the traditional denocracies and, on the other, the Conmttee did not
exam ne individual cases or conmunications, an onmbudsman or simlar mechani sm
woul d be nost wel cone in Bulgaria.

46. He woul d also like to know whether the Cormittee on Young Peopl e and
Children was attached to the Ofice of the Prime Mnister or to that of the
Presi dent and whether it enjoyed the same status as a mnistry or had merely
an advisory role. Lastly, with regard to the media, he said that the wording
of the provisions of the Law on Radi o and Tel evi si on designed to protect
children, reproduced in response to issue No. 22, seened rather vague. Since
Bul gari a was a nenber of the Council of Europe, might it, perhaps, consider
acceding to the Convention on Transfrontier Tel evision, which guaranteed
children greater protection?

47. Ms. KARP said she would like to know whether the nmenbers of the
Committee for Young People and Children participated in the activities of

ot her governnent bodi es or whether they were all independent. She was not
sure that, by distributing its resources and thus its activities equally anong
young peopl e under and over the age of 18, the Committee was serving the best
interests of children as such. Lastly, she would Iike to know whet her the
Government, or any NGOs, had programes designed to acquaint both parents and
children with the provisions of the Convention and the rights enshrined

t herei n.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




